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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ng
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. SE 79-88-M
PETI TI ONER
Assessment Contr ol
V. No. 31-00435- 05003
B. V. HEDRI CK GRAVEL AND B. V. Hedrick Pit and Pl ant
SAND COMPANY,
RESPONDENT
DEC!I SI ON
Appear ances: WIlliamF. Taylor, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor

U S. Department of Labor, for Petitioner
Thomas C. Newmran, Corporate Safety Director
Swannanoa, North Carolina, for Respondent

Bef or e: Admi ni strative Law Judge Steffey

Pursuant to a notice of hearing issued February 27, 1980, a
hearing in the above-entitled proceeding was held on April 8,
1980, in Asheville, North Carolina, under section 105(d) of the
Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977.

Upon conpl etion of introduction of evidence by the parti es,
I rendered the bench decision which is reproduced bel ow (Tr.
81-86):

This proceeding involves a Petition for Assessnent of
Cvil Penalty filed in Docket No. SE 79-88-M on
Septenmber 4, 1979, by the Mne Safety and Health
Admi ni stration, seeking to have a civil penalty
assessed for an alleged violation of 30 CFR 56.12-34 by
B. V. Hedrick Gravel and Sand Conpany.

Thi s proceeding raises the issues that are raised in
all civil penalty cases, nanely, whether a violation
occurred, and, if so, what penalty should be assessed,
based on the six criteria set forth in section 110(i)
of the Act.

I think that |I should make sone findings of fact upon
whi ch nmy concl usions will be based.

(1) On May 22, 1979, Inspector John Kerr made an
exam nation of the facilities of the respondent and at
that time he wote Ctation No. 105415 citing
respondent for a violation of section 56.12-34,
all eging that "I ow
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hanging lights in the shop, refreshnent stand at the
| aboratory were not guarded.”

(2) The citation was witten at 10: 00 a.m and at 4:30
p.m, Inspector Kerr wote an action to term nate,
stating that the | ow hanging lights were provided with
guar ds.

(3) Inspector Kerr was acconpani ed on his inspection
by M. David West, who is the mne superintendent at
the plant and al so by an inspector trainee, whose nane
is WlliamJ. Lowe. Inspector Kerr testified that he
explained to M. West the | ocation of the incandescent
lights that were involved in his citation

(4) Inspector Kerr drew a diagram of the area invol ved
in his citation, which was received in evidence as
Exhi bit 3. Inspector Kerr explained that on the |eft
side of that diagramthere is a square which shows a
shop area and that three of the light bulbs are in an
of fice inside of that shop and the other |ight bulb was
at a refreshnment stand, which is shown also on the |eft
side of Exhibit 3. Inspector Kerr stated in his
citation and explained in reference to Exhibit 3 that
the refreshnent stand about which he was tal king was
situated near a | aboratory.

(5) M. Lowe also testified in this proceeding and
confirmed the testinmony of Inspector Kerr by stating
that he was with Inspector Kerr and that I|nspector Kerr
had correctly shown in Exhibit 3 the | ocation of the
pl aces where they had found |ight bul bs which were
approxi mately six feet four inches off the floor and
whi ch constituted a possible burn or shock hazard to
tall people who mght run into themor to people who
m ght carry sonething on their shoulder and hit such a
['ight bul b.

(6) Inspector Kerr stated that the |ight bul bs
were in areas where the plant superintendent and ot her
supervi sors woul d have had reason to wal k and t hey
shoul d have been aware of the fact that there were
[ight bulbs sufficiently lowto constitute a hazard
wi t hout havi ng guards on them

Those are the primary findings of fact that | wish to
make, but we still have to have a finding of whether a
violation occurred. In that connection, respondent's
witness in this proceeding was M. Newran, who is
respondent's safety director, stated that he had been
unable to determ ne after discussing Ctation No.

105415 with M. West, just exactly where these |ight
bul bs were located. And it was
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his position that after he had wal ked around the area and
the shops and in the refreshment stand that none of the
[ight bul bs woul d have been cl ose enough to the floor that
he would have hit themif he had wal ked under themwhile
wearing a safety helmet and that he also is 6 feet 1 inch
i n height.

| am supposed to base ny findings of fact upon the
preponder ance of the evidence and | find that the
testimony of an inspector and trai nee who were present
at the time Ctation No. 105415 was witten shoul d be
gi ven greater weight than the testinmony of M. Newran
in this instance, because M. Newman was working from
an adverse circunstance, in that he was not present on
May 22, when the citation was witten, and he
necessarily was wor ki ng and naki ng an i nvestigation on
the basis of the abatenent of the citation which had
been witten on a previous day when he was not present.

Therefore, | find that there was a violation of section
56.12- 34, which provides that portable extension lights
and other lights that by their |ocation present a shock
or burn hazard shall be guarded.

Having found a violation it is necessary for nme to
assess a penalty based on the six criteria. W have
had sonme stipulations which first of all indicate and
agree that the respondent is subject to the
jurisdiction of the Comm ssion and to the Act and
Regul ati ons pronul gated thereunder. |t has been
stipulated that the paynent of a penalty would not
cause the conpany to discontinue in business. It has
been stipulated that the conpany is a noderate-sized
conpany, and it was stated that the conpany produces
approximately 1 mllion tons of rock and sand a year
but that production figure, while apparently quite high
at face value, reflects a digging operation as opposed
to a crushing operation, and, therefore, the quantity
of the production is not as indicative of a |large
conpany as would be the case if we had a crushing
operation in connection with the production operation

It was al so shown that since these guards were
pl aced on the lights within the period provided for by
the inspector, that there was a good faith effort to
achi eve rapid conpliance.

The remaining two criteria relate to the gravity of
the violation and to negligence. Those are the ones that
we primarily use for determ ning just how |l arge a
penalty should be assessed. 1In view of the fact that
these lights were six feet four inches off the floor at
a mnimm only tall people would have been likely to
run into themand even then that is sonewhat debat abl e,
dependi ng on the conflicting testinony of the w tnesses
on height, but | find that the Iight bul bs would not



constitute a really serious hazard that would be likely
to kill anyone who m ght happen to bunp into one of
t hem
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As to negligence, apparently the inspector considered

alight bulb at seven feet off the floor as not a hazard and
does not have be guarded, so, we have a situation where there
m ght have been at |east a doubt in respondent's mnd as to
whet her these light bul bs were | ow enough to require guarding,
and, consequently, | find that there was a | ow degree of
negl i gence associated with the violation

In view of the fact that we have a noderate-sized
operator, have a good-faith abatenent, and have a
noderately serious violation with a | ow degree of
negligence, | think that a penalty of $15.00 is
reasonabl e under the circunstances.

VWHEREFORE, it is ordered:

Wthin 30 days after the date of this decision, respondent
shall pay a penalty of $15.00 for the violation of 30 CFR
56.12-34 alleged in Citation No. 105415 dated May 22, 1979.

Richard C Steffey
Admi ni strative Law Judge
(Phone: 703- 756- 6225)



